

Argentina



2008

Studying in Argentina



Studying in Argentina

Index

1. Argentina	page 3
2. Studying in Argentina	page 8
3. Useful Information	page 13
4. Directory	page 19
5. Electronic Directory	page 38
6. Sources	page 40

1. ARGENTINA

Location and Borders

Argentina is located in the Western Southern hemisphere. Its capital city is Ciudad Autónoma de Buenos Aires, lying on the East shore of the Rio de la Plata.

With respect to its territorial distribution, the country is divided into the 23 provinces below: Buenos Aires, Catamarca, La Rioja, Mendoza, Misiones, Neuquén, Río Negro, Salta, San Juan, San Luis, Chaco, Chubut, Córdoba, Corrientes, Entre Ríos, Formosa, Jujuy, Tucumán, La Pampa, Santa Cruz, Santa Fe, Santiago del Estero, and Tierra del Fuego.

Antarctica Sector

The Argentine Antarctica Sector is that part of the national territory stretching between Meridians 25° West and 74° West, at the parallel 60° South latitude.

American Sector Borders:

Northern Area

It borders with the Republics of Bolivia and Paraguay, its farthest extreme lying in the Grande de San Juan and Mojinete rivers confluence area, in the province of Jujuy at a 21°46' South Latitude ; 66°13' West Longitude.

Southern Area

It borders with the Republic of Chile and the Atlantic Ocean up to its Southernmost extreme located in Cape San Pío, in Tierra del Fuego Grande Island, at a 55°03' South Latitude; and a 66°31' West longitude.

Eastern Area

It shares borders with the Federative Republic of Brazil, the Eastern Republic of Uruguay and the Atlantic Ocean. Its Easternmost extreme is located at the Northeastern end of Bernardo de Irigoyen district in the province of Misiones, at a 26°15' South Latitude; and a 53°38' West longitude.

Western Area

It borders with the Republic of Chile. Its extreme point lies between Cerro Agassis and Cerro Bolados (Agassis Hills and Bolados Hills)– along the Mariano Moreno Range in the Glaciers National Park, province of Santa Cruz, at a 49°33' South latitude; and a 73°34' West longitude.

ARGENTINE REPUBLIC	
Capital City:	Ciudad Autónoma de Buenos Aires.
Total Area	3,761,274 Km2.
Climate	Warm, temperate, arid and cold
Language	Spanish. Native languages: Araucano, Guaraní, Quechua.
Estimated Population	40,000,000 inhab
Political System	Republican, Representative and Federal.
Local Currency	Peso (\$)

Territorial Area

Argentina ranks second among South American countries due to its vast areas. As a matter of fact, it extends over a total area of 3,761,274 Km², where 2,791,810 Km² belong to the American Continent, and 969,464 Km² stand as part of the Antarctic Continent, also comprising the South Orcadas islands, the Southern Islands, the South Georgias Islands and the South Sandwich Islands.

ARGENTINE REPUBLIC
Total Area 3,761,274 Km ² .

The enormous vastness of Argentine territory offers all kinds of landscape such as woods, rainforests, vast beaches, lakes, dams, falls, ice fields and glaciers, as well as deserts high plateaus depicting multicolour hills and valleys. Furthermore, Argentina features vast Eastern plains, as well as the breathtaking Andes Mountains rising in the West, and hosting the 6,959 meter Mount Aconcagua, regarded as the Western hemisphere highest peak.

Climate

Warm Climate

The Argentine Northeastern region has a warm climate. The winds primarily blowing in this region come from the North, Northeastern and Eastern areas. The warm climate comprises the three climate types detailed below:

ARGENTINE REPUBLIC
Climate Warm, temperate, arid and cold.

Subtropical climate with no dry season: this type of climate extends along the provinces of Misiones and Corrientes, and the north of Entre Ríos and Chaco's Eastern region. Its main features are high temperatures and abundant rainfalls the whole year round.

Tropical climate with a dry season: this type of climate is found in one portion of Salta province, in Formosa and Chaco's western areas, Tucuman's Eastern high plateau, nearly all of Santiago del Estero province and Santa Fe's Northwestern region. The dry season lasts up until the middle of the year.

Tropical mountain climate: this type of climate is found in Argentina's Northwestern region, the Sub-Andean Sierras, valleys and ravines.

Temperate Climate

It is the climate found in the country's central region, the province of Buenos Aires, a large portion of Entre Rios, Santa Fe's central and southern regions, Cordoba's Eastern area, and one portion of La Pampa's Northeastern region.

"Pampeano" temperate climate: this climate type extends along the Paraná-Plata riverbank area.

Temperate climate influenced by the ocean: this type of climate extends along Buenos Aires coastline area, Mar del Plata and Necochea.

Mountain temperate climate: this climate type is found in Cordoba province valleys and sierras.

Arid Climate

This type of climate extends from the country's Northeastern to Southeastern regions in la Puna, Catamarca's Andes, La Rioja and San Juan, the Pre-Andean adjacent area and the extra-Andean Patagonia region. It offers four different types of climate depending on the region's height and altitude parameters.

Arid Mountain Climate: this type of climate extends from Catamarca to Mendoza provinces along the Puna Region and the Andes Mountains, at a 3000 meter-altitude above the sea level. There is a wide daily and yearly temperature range and frosts are recorded throughout the whole year.

Sierras-and-Fields Arid Climate: this climate type is found in the Andes Eastern area and the "Sierras Pampeanas" region. The annual mean temperature stands roughly at 18° C. The temperature range is higher between daytime and nighttime.

Steppe arid climate: this type of climate is found in the Northern Patagonia, the mean temperature recorded standing below 15° C. Frosts occur quite often and rainfalls are scarcely recorded.

Cold Arid climate: this climate type extends along Southern Patagonia region, the mean temperature recorded standing close to 10° C.

Cold Climate

Cold arid windy climate: this type of climate is found in Patagonia region featuring scarce rainfalls and winter snowstorms.

Southern humid climate: this climate type appears in Santa Cruz and Tierra del Fuego province.

Snowy climate: it is glacier type of climate extending along the Southern Mountain Ranges, Santa Cruz continental ice region and the glacier spots lying at the High Patagonia Mountain Ranges.

Cold ocean climate: this type of climate is found in the Southern islands. As to the cold weather, it lasts most of the year and snowfalls and frequent storms are usually recorded.

Temperature Transformations

From ° C to ° F: multiply 1,8 and add 32.

From ° F to ° C: subtract 32 and multiply this figure by 5/9.

Below there follows the list of the seasons taking place in Argentina.

Summer: December 21-March 20

Autumn: March 21-June 20

Winter: June 21- September 20

Spring: September 21- December 20

Language

Spanish (or Castellano) is the official language spoken in Argentina. Brought in by the Spanish conquerors, it definitely enriched itself as it began to be spoken by native Indian populations, a phenomenon which was also boosted by the successive immigration waves arriving at the end of the XIX century.

ARGENTINE REPUBLIC
Language Spanish. Native Languages: Araucano, Guaraní, Quechua.

The “vos” form rather than the “Tú” one has been adopted as a colloquially distinctive feature. With respect to dialects, they are spoken all over Argentina, and they are regarded as intelligible among each other. Furthermore, some regions speak native Indian population languages such as Araucano, Guaraní and Quechua.

Population

Argentina counts a population of roughly 40 million Argentine inhabitants. Most of them are of European descent, mainly of Spanish or Italian origin. Furthermore, there is also a native Indian population minority living in Argentina. In turn, we can find a large number of minority groups such as those of German, Arab, Armenian, Bolivian, Brazilian, Catalan, Croatian, Scottish, Slovenian, Galician, Greek, British, Irish, Italian, Jewish, Peruvian, Polish, Portuguese, Swizz, Ucrainian and Basque origin, among others.

ARGENTINE REPUBLIC
Estimated Population 40,000,000 inhabitants

Political System

The Argentine government is based upon a Republican, Representative and Federal system, which is divided into three branches:

REPÚBLICA ARGENTINA
Currency Peso (\$)

Executive Branch: it is primarily headed by the President—who is elected for a four-year term by means of a direct popular vote. Presidential elections are held every four years and the president may be re-elected for a single consecutive term - the vice-president, the head of the government Cabinet-appointed by the President- ministries and secretaries.

Legislative Branch: it is made up of the Senate represented by three senators on behalf of every province and three further senators representing the city of Buenos Aires. They are elected for a six-year term through a direct vote.

As to The House of Representatives, it is staffed by two houses and 257 members elected for a four-year term through a direct vote. Such members may be re-elected.

Judicial Branch: it is made up of the Supreme Court of Justice, federal and appeal chambers, federal, and ordinary judges and Justices of the Peace.

Currency

The peso (\$) is the Argentine official currency. There are circulating notes of 100, 50, 20, 10, 5 and 2 pesos; 1 peso and 50 cent coins, and coins being worth 25, 10 and 5 cents.

REPÚBLICA ARGENTINA
Currency Peso (\$)

The US dollar is the major international currency. With respect to foreign currencies, they may be exchanged in banks or authorized exchange bureaus where passports are to be submitted to that effect.

VAT

The Value added tax (rate) in Argentina is 21%.

Tax free

In order for the tax-free products VAT return to be obtained, purchases receipts or bills are to be kept and forms that can be picked up at the Airport have to be filled in.

Telecommunications

Telephone Service: it comprises a landline or mobile or domicile telephones as well as pay phones located on the street and cybercafes.

Postal Service: it extends all over the country, the major vendor being Correo Argentino (Argentina´s Postal Service).

Means of Communication: this system counts over 200 newspapers. The ones having the major print run are published in the City of Buenos Aires and most cities own local newspapers. Furthermore, there are roughly 1500 am and fm radio stations.

Buenos Aires´ major TV broadcasting signals are Channel 13, América TV, Telefé, Channel 9 and 7, the latter one being state-owned and the only one channel reaching out fully at a national level. Additionally, large cities have their own channels with local programs as well as broadcast TV repeaters transmitting from the city of Buenos Aires. It is to be highlighted that there is a vast number of cable television channels with a local and international programming system.

Internet Service: it reaches out to all major cities and tourist centres. Private domiciles may hire a vendor providing services & rates options. In turn, internet access may be also obtained in shops, cybercafes and/or pay phone centres where a fee is charged in terms of the time the internet service is used. Similarly, hotels, bars, restaurants, cafeterias, airports, shopping malls, among other places, usually provide their clients with a free wireless service.

2. STUDYING IN ARGENTINA

The higher education training system is regarded as the best in Latin America. It is made up of 103 undergraduate institutions attended by over 1,500,000 students. In fact, 1,285, 000 of these students attend state-run institutions and 250,000 study in private universities.

Extending all over the country ´s regions both universities and institutes feature an academic offer targeted at foreign students and welcome roughly 25,000 young students on an annual basis.

Studying options involve pre-graduate, undergraduate and graduate courses of studies. With respect to pre-graduate courses of studies, they are short-lasting, do not take longer than a four-year term and offer technical degrees. Concerning undergraduate courses, they include bachelor ´s degrees, some teacher training colleges, courses of study such as medicine, law, and different engineering majors, among other options. As regards graduate courses, options comprise a wide scope of disciplinary fields. Fees are generally paid and some universities offer scholarships to foreign students.

The higher education system

The higher education system includes:

- **38 national universities**

They are state-run and their campus facilities extend all over the country ´s regions namely the Buenos Aires, central-eastern, central-western, metropolitan, northeastern, northwestern and southern areas – in reality, they entail Argentina ´s higher education largest sector which is attended by more than 80% of students and more than 50% of research works are carried out in these universities.

- **43 private universities**

These universities charge a fee based upon the institution and the course of studies selected. As to their campus facilities, they are located in the country ´s major urban areas and are attended roughly by 250 thousand students.

- **6 state-run higher education institutes and 13 privately-run undergraduate institutes**

With respect to academic offers, they are based upon a single disciplinary area such as arts, aeronautics, medicine, theology, economy, business and administration, among other options. It is to be highlighted that private institutes alone are attended by roughly 10 thousand students. As regards state-run institutions, they do not charge a fee and admission requirements for foreign students vary depending on the institutions in question, whether they being private or state-run. In case of private institutes, fees are to be found in each one of these institutes.

- **1 provincial university**

The Universidad Aut3noma de Entre R3os owns four schools, having campus facilities only in that province. As to the courses of studies offered by this university, there are the ones having a bearing on science and technology, management and health sciences, among others.

- **1 foreign university**

It is referred to as the University of Bologna, with its campus located in the City of Buenos Aires. As to its academic offer, it includes master degree courses in market research, local development internationalization, research methodology, advanced training courses, and a graduate program on European integration.

- **1 international university**

It is known as the Latin American School of Social Sciences (FLACSO), with its campus lying in Argentina, where the following courses may be attended personally or done on a virtual basis: a Phd in Social Sciences, thirteen master degree courses and specialization programs, graduate courses and seminars. Furthermore, scholarships are offered to foreigners.

All accreditations provided by educational institutions, whether they being public or privately-run, are subject to the acknowledgement granted by the National Department of Education through the National Commission for University Evaluation and Accreditation (CONEAU), an entity being in charge of permanently evaluating the whole of higher education institutions and the degrees thereby granted:

The pre-undergraduate and undergraduate courses of studies offered by Argentine universities and the resulting national validity of the degrees granted are subject to official acknowledgement provided by the Argentine State through the Department of Education, Science and Technology as prescribed by section 41 of the Higher Education Act N° 24.521.

Those courses of studies endangering the public interest by directly jeopardizing the inhabitants' health, security, rights, goods and training, shall have to be regularly accredited by the National Commission for University Evaluation and Accreditation (CONEAU), or by properly acknowledged privately-run entities set up to that effect.

Pursuant to section 46 of the aforementioned Act, graduate courses of study, whether being specializations, master degree courses or Phd degree programs also have to be accredited by the CONEAU, in compliance with the standards set forth by the Department of Education, Science and Technology jointly with the Universities Council.

On the other hand, section 44 of the above mentioned Act sets forth that higher education institutions must guarantee that institutional assessment internal evaluations are conducted jointly with external assessments to be regularly carried out at least every six years against the backdrop of targets agreed upon by every institution. External evaluations are conducted by the CONEAU or private entities set up to that effect, as well as by renowned academic peers.

Why Studying in Argentina

The ongoing training, the knowledge about other cultures and the increasingly more required use of the Spanish language impose upon students all over the world new requirements to be complied with while studying. Choosing a place to study requires analyzing manifold variables.

In this scenario, Argentina is positioning itself as an increasingly more enticing destination for foreign students to choose. In fact, it is a vast, multicultural and safe country offering a very diversified scope of

cities, settings, and study centres.

Furthermore, Argentina is said to be endowed with a one-hundred year old educational tradition in all levels involved. With respect to state policies, they have focused on making sure that all inhabitants may have a free access to a high quality education, which has therefore resulted in Argentina having a highly educated and literate population. In fact, more than 30% of young people aged 18-24 attend university.

A piece of data deserving to be highlighted is that the state-run university tradition lies upon a non-restricted admission policy including no vacancies at all. Another issue to which reference should be made is that state-run universities professors are elected through a contests system, therefore securing freedom of ideas and knowledge diversity.

Scientific research support and development are also boosted and backed up by the State. As a matter of fact, institutions are annually invited to submit their initiatives through the National Scientific and Technical Research Council (Conicet). In fact, higher education institutions are endowed with high quality research centers, both for hard sciences and for social ones. Another interesting invitation to participate is the one promoted by Innovar Contest every 4 years, which is primarily targeted at acknowledging, promoting and rewarding initiatives endowed with originality, willingness of change, and added value for knowledge production, and above all at improving citizens' quality of life.

As to training centers, even if most of them are found in urban centers, the way they are distributed allows choosing institutions located in peaceful places lying close to tourist attractions or natural areas.

Cities stand as major centers where cultural, sport and economic activities are carried out. Apart from Buenos Aires, the capital city of Argentina, other urban hubs such as Rosario, Mendoza, Córdoba, Resistencia, Bariloche or La Plata, also offer a balanced combination between studying and urban life.

The country's cultural life is regarded as one of the most promoted and dynamic in the region. Argentina is endowed with a national network holding over 500 museums. Actually, Buenos Aires holds one of the world's most diversified standalone or "off" theater options. The local film production records an upwards trend year after year and it currently stands as one of the most interesting and original industries at a worldwide level. Therefore, this phenomenon results in films taking part at renowned Film Celebrations such as the Cannes, Berlin or San Sebastián Film Festivals and being awarded prizes. With respect to the film industry related courses of studies, they are becoming increasingly better positioned as interesting options for foreign students to bear in mind. As regards the TV industry, the sale of programs, ideas, formats and scripts to foreign markets is revitalizing this worldwide business. Concerning Argentine designs involving the graphic, industrial, multimedia, clothing or decoration industries, they have acquired a sustainably growing major role. With respect to the publishing industry, it is, in fact, endowed with an undeniable tradition, which has therefore turned Argentina into one of the world's major Spanish-speaking markets. In a nutshell, local cultures' current development has reached an extent of recognition that accurately blends creativity, management and professionalization.

Studying Spanish in Argentina

Choosing Argentina as the core country to study Spanish is actually turning into a growing phenomenon year after year. As a matter of fact, the number of people studying Spanish in Argentina climbed from

17,000 to 25,000 students in 2007 only. As to the time of year attracting the largest number of students, they usually come in February, July and August respectively.

With respect to campus facilities, they have recorded a large-scale growth and comprise study centers located all across the country. Apart from those courses taught at privately-run teaching institutes, there are also the ones offered by state-run national universities.

Concerning the scope of classes offered, it is actually wide, and it ranges from short-term and crash courses to the ones taught on an annual basis or focusing on specific targets, whether they entail laboral, professional, academic or tourism related goals. Another option to consider is learning Spanish while taking up other activities such as voluntary work, tango classes, rural, adventure or health tourism. As regards training centers, each one of them usually offers classes and other options aiming at enabling students' accommodation as well as their access to cultural activities.

Another enticing feature for tourists to choose to study Spanish in Argentina is the fact they may be granted the Certificate of Spanish, Language and Use (CELU), an accreditation granted by the Departments of Education and the one of Foreign Affairs, which assess the command of Spanish as a second and foreign language. Students may take the aforementioned exam twice a year in certain local universities, and they may also sit for it in several of Brazil's campus locations.

For further information about the Certificate of Spanish, Language and Use go to www.celu.edu.ar

Indispensable Procedures

Resident students

They are entitled to the same benefits enjoyed by Argentine students. Interested individuals are to enroll directly at the selected university and submit the required documentation. With respect to such documentation, students are usually required to submit the following documents: the high school diploma or regular status certificate confirming that no subjects remain unpassed; the National Identity Document (DNI), the photocopy of its first two pages and two 4x4-size photos.

The system provides for the previously validated high school studies completed in the country of origin. Should the need arise, every school shall anyhow inform whether any other type of documentation such as special authentications is also to be submitted.

For further information about high school studies validation procedures go to www.me.gov.ar/validez/estudio_exterior.html

Non-resident students

They are to attend the Argentine Consulate in their respective country of origin and request a vacancy pursuant to the 1523/90 Ministerial Resolution system. Registrations carried out under this system are thus exempted from complying with high school studies validation general requirements. Students enrolled in compliance with this system shall have to request authorization from the Department of Education upon graduation to exercise their profession in Argentina.

The National Immigrations Department (DNM) Resolution # 20699 provides for three types of international students, whether they aim at taking a higher education course of studies, doing short-

term courses, or taking part in internships or undergraduate exchange programs. International students are therefore grouped into the following categories:

International Students from MERCOSUR and Associated States namely Bolivia, Brazil, Colombia, Chile, Ecuador, Paraguay, Perú, Uruguay and Venezuela

Once enrollment at a higher education institution has been completed, students shall appear before the National Immigrations Department within a thirty working-day term and submit the following documentation: a receipt verifying enrollment at the educational institution, a currently valid passport, their identity card, or a citizenship certificate, a legalized and apostilled certificate confirming the non-existence of criminal records where the students have resided over the last three years, and a certificate confirming the non-existence of criminal records in Argentina. Apart from submitting this documentation, students shall have to pay the applicable fee.

Extra MERCOSUR international students, NOT requiring a visa to enter Argentina as tourists

Once enrollment at a higher education institution has been completed, students shall appear before the National Immigrations Department within a thirty working-day term and submit the following documentation: a receipt verifying enrollment at the educational institution, a currently valid passport, their identity card, acknowledgment or a citizenship certificate, an authenticated birth certificate, authenticated or apostilled certificate confirming the non-existence of criminal records where the students have resided over the last five years, and a certificate confirming the non-existence of criminal records in Argentina. Apart from submitting this documentation, students shall have to pay the applicable fee.

Extra MERCOSUR International Students, requiring a visa in order to enter Argentina as tourists

The higher education institution shall, by means of a specific form, request authorization from the National Immigrations Department for foreigners to enter Argentina and the National Immigrations Department may accept or reject such request.

In the former case, foreign students shall apply for the visa before the reported consulate, where such document shall be granted to them provided students can prove their identity, the non-existence of criminal records in the country where they have resided over the last five years and on condition they submit their birth certificate. Likewise, they shall have to prove they have the means to support themselves and afford accommodation in Argentina, and that their command of the official language is adequate. Students falling into this last category, who have taken and successfully completed an officially acknowledged Spanish course, and are subsequently enrolled and admitted by an officially renowned educational entity with the purpose of taking up a formal course of studies, may shift from a migratory subcategory to that of formal students in Argentina.

Once the above mentioned formalities have been complied with, a two-year temporary residence shall be granted in all cases. Such term may be extended providing that non-criminal records are found in Argentina, students keep on having a regular student status and applicable fees are paid.

Similarly, students undergoing a health treatment and/ or receiving medication on a regular basis must be notified in advance as to the availability of such treatment / or medicine to be provided in Argentina.

For further information go to www.migraciones.gov.ar or "Proceedings Guide", under the Documentation / Migrations section of www.argentina.gov.ar website.

Courses, internships or exchange programs

In order to attend more than 90-day courses, take part in students, or cultural exchange programs, internships or partial study programs framed within a higher education course of study, the requirements below are to be complied with:

Extra MERCOSUR international students NOT requiring a visa to enter Argentina as tourists

Once enrollment at a higher education institution has been completed, students shall appear before the National Immigrations Department within a thirty-business day term and submit the following documentation: a receipt verifying enrollment at the educational institution and the course to be attended, a currently valid passport, their identity card, or a citizenship certificate, an authenticated or apostilled certificate confirming the non-existence of criminal records where students have resided over the last five years, and a certificate confirming the non-existence of criminal records in Argentina.

Extra MERCOSUR International Students, requiring a visa in order to enter Argentina as tourists

The higher education institution shall, by means of a specific form, request authorization from the National Immigrations Department for foreigners to enter Argentina and the National Immigrations Department may accept or reject such request.

In the former case, the foreign students having been notified, they shall apply for the visa before the reported consulate in order to attend the course in question. For the visa to be granted, the students must prove their identity and the non-existence of criminal records in the country where they have resided over the last five years. Similarly, a birth certificate has to be submitted and students must prove they have the economic means to support themselves and afford accommodation in Argentina, and that their knowledge of the language spoken at a national level is adequate.

MERCOSUR and associated states students are exempted from complying with this requirement. The above mentioned formalities having been complied with, a special one-year temporary residence shall be granted in all cases, except when the course term, and the time to take part in students and cultural exchange programs, internships or partial studies framed within a higher education course of studies may be shorter. Should that be the case, the residence term shall be the one above stated.

For further information go to www.migraciones.gov.ar or "Procedures Guide", under the Documentation/Migrations section of www.argentina.gov.ar website.

3. Useful information

Accommodation

Some universities offer dormitories or residencies and the ones not offering such service usually provide students with accommodation counseling. Students are to find out about this service at the institution they are going to attend. Accommodation costs vary according to the city where it is to be secured, the area where students are to live in and the type of service to be offered.

What students most generally do is the following:

- Renting a house or an apartment
- Renting a room in a family home or apartment
- Renting a room in a students' residence.

For further information go to the Studying in Argentina website under Expenses in Argentina/Accommodation section <http://spuweb.siu.edu.ar/studyinginargentina/pages/study1406.php>

Scholarships

Announcements for scholarship applications targeted at foreign students wishing to study in Argentina are made every year. Updated information regarding this issue may be found at the Studying in Argentina official website.

For further information go to the Studying in Argentina website under the Requirements and Scholarships section <http://spuweb.siu.edu.ar/studyinginargentina/pages/study1203.php>

Information Center for foreigners

0800-555-0016
turista@turismo.gov.ar

Telephone Code

Dial 00 + 54 + Area Code + telephone number in order to call Argentina from abroad.

City Area Code

Ciudad de Buenos Aires: 11
Buenos Aires. La Plata: 221
Buenos Aires. Mar del Plata: 223
Buenos Aires. Bahía Blanca: 291
Catamarca: 3833
Córdoba: 351
Corrientes: 3783
Chaco. Resistencia: 3722
Chubut. Rawson: 2965
Entre Ríos. Paraná: 343
Formosa: 3717
San Salvador de Jujuy: 388
La Pampa. Santa Rosa: 2954
La Rioja: 3822
Mendoza: 261
Misiones. Posadas: 3752
Neuquén: 299
Río Negro. Viedma: 2920
Salta: 387
San Juan: 264
San Luis: 2652
Santa Cruz. Río Gallegos: 2966
Santa Fe: 342
Santa Fe. Rosario: 341
Santiago del Estero: 385
Tucumán. San Miguel de Tucumán: 381
Tierra del Fuego. Ushuaia: 2901

Electricity

Electricity in Argentina is 220 volts, with a 50 cycle alternating current. Tourists are advised to bring in transformers.

Time

The time zone is GMT-3 compliant.

Time may vary in some provinces both in Summer and Winter time.

Business Hours

Banks and Exchange bureaus: they are open from Monday through Friday between 10 am and 3 pm.

Business Offices: they are generally open 9 am 12 noon, and 2 pm- 7 pm.

Stores and Outlets: they are open 9 am-8 pm in big cities, though they usually close at noon in the inland territory.

On Saturdays, stores are open 9 am-1 pm.

Cafés, cafeterias and pizza bars: they are open from 8 am to 12 midnight in big cities. Restaurants serve lunch as from 12.30 noon and dinner as from 8.30 pm.

A large number of restaurants offer fast-food service at any time.

Tipping

It is customary to set aside 10% of the service amount charged in cafeterias and restaurants, though some of them include this amount in the check. It is also customary to tip doormen, bellboys and cinema and theater ushers.

Internal Transportation System

Rent a Car service: this service is offered in a wide scope of cities and it can be paid in cash or by credit card. If wanting to rent a car, the driving license currently in force in Argentina as well as the driver's identity document or passport are to be submitted.

Short-distance buses: they run in urban areas- within a city- or at an interurban level-therefore connecting several districts. They are the most widely used means of transportation. As to their cost, they are inexpensive and the fare varies according to the city where buses are taken and the distance to be covered. Coins, tokens, or magnetic cards are used as means of payment. As to the latter two, they must be bought at stores having entered into an agreement in order to sell them. With respect to buses timetables and distances, they are to be found out in every city - some cities sell guides providing this information and in others such information may be checked in the timetable grids displayed at the ticket office. This kind of transportation system provides the so-called special bus service. These buses run on a less frequent basis and their fares are higher. However, there are advantages to taking special buses: passengers may travel sitting, and these buses offer a central heating service in winter and air conditioning in summer time.

Long-distance buses: they are taken aiming at covering long distances within the country and to travel to neighboring countries. As to the ticket fare, it varies according to the bus company, the type of service offered and the distance to be covered. Tickets are usually paid in cash and some bus companies also accept credit cards. With respect to bus tickets, they may be bought at buses terminals, travel agencies or on the internet. As to requirements to be complied, passengers are to submit an identity document or passport when buying a bus ticket.

Mini buses: they are taken to cover interurban distances. Their fare depends both on the company hired and on the distance to be covered. As a matter of fact, this service is usually offered to travel from airports or suburban areas to cities.

“Remise” Service: this service is hired for short and long-distance trips. With respect to the “remise” fare, it varies according to the city where the service is offered and the distance to be covered. As to the way to get a “remise”, this service is always hired through a “remise” office.

Subway service: this transportation system is used to commute in the City of Buenos Aires, and it is, in fact, the most frequently chosen means of transportation, if aiming at traveling fast. The different subway lines actually extend all over the city’s strategic spots. They charge a flat rate and tickets can be bought at every station ticket office. This means of transportation provides two ways of travelling: travelers may use the “subtepass” magnetic card, which is to be paid in cash, or the “subtecard” magnetic card, which may be charged by using a credit card. As to their timetable, subways always run from Monday through Saturday from 6:00 am to 11:00 pm. and from 8:00 am to 10 pm on Sundays.

Taxi service: Taxis may be hailed right on the street or passengers may phone a radio taxi agency in order to request one. As to the taxi fares, they vary depending on the city where taxis are taken and the distance to be covered. Fares are paid in cash, though some agencies offer their clients the possibility of using this service for a certain period of time and paying for all trips taken later as agreed upon.

Train Service: it is an inexpensive and popular means of transportation used to cover urban, interurban and long-distance journeys. Fares and timetables vary in terms of the city where trains are taken, the type of service offered and the distance covered.

Trolebús: it is an electrical bus being driven in the cities of Córdoba, Rosario and Mendoza. Passengers are charged low fares and they comprise practically the same urban distances as those covered by urban buses.

Migrations. On-line information and forms

The migratory card may be filled in and printed at the National Immigrations Department in order for foreigners to enter the country. Furthermore, information regarding all formalities to be complied with by a foreigner to enter and stay in Argentina is therein provided.

For further information go to www.migraciones.gov.ar

The Argentine Government website offers a procedures manual where all the requirements to be complied with to enter the country for studying, exchange or laboral purposes are thoroughly explained.

For further information go to www.argentina.gov.ar, and click on the Procedures heading. Subsequently, go to the documentation section and then click on the “Migrations-Permits to enter the country” icon.

The Argentine Foreign Office website allows checking what countries require foreigners to get a visa and to secure information about how such document may be granted.

For further information go to www.mrecic.gov.ar website, click on the Argentine Foreign Office icon and subsequently on consulate affairs.

International Health Insurance

Students are to submit a copy of the international health insurance policy before the university. The policy coverage shall include the total stay period in Argentina and contingent repatriation and / or evacuation expenses.

Health insurance programs offered by credit card companies are not adequate enough for the type of coverage required.

Working while studying

The permanent, or temporary residence is to be secured in order to be able to work in Argentina. Furthermore, a work visa is to be obtained, as well. These formalities may be complied with at any of the National Immigrations Department venues.

For further information go to www.migraciones.gov.ar

4. Directory

Argentine Airports

For further information click on: www.aa2000.com.ar

Aeroparque | AEP - Aeroparque Jorge Newbery (City of Buenos Aires)
O. Obligado S/N
(011) 4130-4100/4300. Mondays to Fridays, from 8.30 am to 7 pm.

Bahía Blanca | BHI - Aeroestación Civil Comandante Espora
Ruta 007/05 Km. 675
(0291) 486-0325

Bariloche | BRC - Aeropuerto Internacional San Carlos de Bariloche
Ruta Nacional 238 - S/N
(02944) 40-5026 / 40-5037

Catamarca | CTC - General Felipe Varela
Ruta Provincial 38 Km. 22
(03833) 43-0080

Chapelco | CPC - Chapelco Aviador Carlos Campos
Ruta Provincial 234 S/N
(02972) 42-7636

Comodoro Rivadavia | CRD - Aeropuerto Internacional Gral. Enrique Mosconi
Km. 9 - Comodoro Rivadavia
(0297) 454-8126

Córdoba | COR - Aeropuerto Internacional Córdoba "Ingeniero Aeronáutico Ambrosio Taravella"
Cno. Pajas Blancas Km. 8.5
(0351) 475-3008

Corrientes | CNQ - Fernando Piragine Niveyro
Ruta 12 Km. 7
(03783) 45-8325

El Calafate | FTE - Aeropuerto Internacional El Calafate
Ruta Provincial N°11
(02902) 49-2499/49-1220/49-1230

Esquel | EQS - Aeropuerto Brigadier Gral. Antonio Parodi
Ruta 40
(02945)-45-2688/45-2793

Ezeiza | EZE - Aeropuerto Internacional de Ezeiza Ministro Pistarini
Av. Tte. Gral. Ricchieri S/N

(011) 4480-5000

Formosa | FMA - Aeropuerto Internacional Formosa
Ruta Nacional N°11 Km. 1052
(03717) 45-2490

Iguazú | IGR - Capitán Krause
Cno. Anexo a Ruta Provincial N°101
(03757) 42-0915

Jujuy | JUJ - Aeropuerto Internacional Dr. Horacio Guzmán
35 Km. San Salvador de Jujuy
(0388) 491-1109/491-1108

La Rioja | IRJ - Vicente Almandos Almonacid
Ruta Provincial 5, Km. 7
(03822) 42-7239

Mar del Plata | MDQ - Aeropuerto Internacional Mar del Plata Brigadier Gral. Bartolomé De la Colina
Ruta Nacional N°2 Km. 398
(0223) 479-0194

Mendoza | MDZ - Aeropuerto Internacional Ingeniero Francisco Gabrielli "El Plumerillo"
Ruta Nacional 40 N. S/N. Las Heras
(0261) 448-7320/448-7257

Neuquén | NQN - Aeropuerto Internacional de Neuquén Juan D. Perón
San Martín 5901
(0299) 444-0736/444-0486

Posadas | PSS - Aeropuerto Internacional Posadas, Libertador Don José de San Martín
Ruta 12
(03752) 45-1104/45-2711

Resistencia | RES - Aeropuerto Internacional Resistencia
Ruta 11 Km. 1003.5
(03722) 44-6800/01

Río Gallegos | RGL - Piloto Civil Norberto Fernández
Ruta Nacional N°3 Km. 8
(02966) 44-2059

Río Grande | RGA - Aeropuerto Internacional Río Grande
Ruta Nacional N°3 Acceso Aeropuerto S/N
(02964) 42-2270/42-2271

Rosario | ROS - Aeropuerto Internacional Rosario Islas Malvinas
Jorge Newbery S/N
(0341) 451-1470

Salta | SLA - Aeropuerto Gral. Martín Miguel de Güemes

Ruta 51 Km. 5
(0387) 424-1200/424-1185

San Juan | UAQ - Aeropuerto San Juan
Ruta 20 Km. 12
(0264) 425-0487

San Luis | LUQ - Aeropuerto Brigadier Mayor Ojeda
Avenida Fuerza Aérea 3095
(02652) 42-2427/457 int. 120 (Tráfico) 43-7015 (Operaciones)

San Rafael | AFA - Aeropuerto Santiago Germano
Ruta Provincial 143 S/N
(02627) 43-6324

Santa Fe | SFN - Aeropuerto Sauce Viejo
Ruta 11 Km. 457
(0342) 499-5058

Santa Rosa | RSA - Aeropuerto Santa Rosa
Ruta 35 Km. 330
(02954) 43-2915

Santiago del Estero | SDE - Vice Comodoro Ángel Aragonés
Av. Madres de Ciudades S/N
(0385) 434-0337

Trelew | REL - Aeropuerto Almirante Zar
Ruta Nacional N°3 Km. 1450
(02965) 42-0060

Ushuaia | USH - Aeropuerto Internacional de Ushuaia "Malvinas Argentinas"
(02901) 43-6586 (Of. de ventas) 43-7265 (Tráfico)

Viedma | VDM - Aeropuerto Gobernador Castello
Ruta Provincial 151 Km. 7
(02920) 42-6404

Tucumán | TUC - Aeropuerto Teniente Benjamín Matienzo
Delfín Gallo S/N
(0381) 426-0016 (Tráfico) 426-3813 (Operaciones)

Embassies and Consulates

Foreign visitors may contact their country's embassy and consulates for paperwork or queries purposes. Such entities generally own offices in all large urban centres.

Australia

Villanueva 1400

City of Buenos Aires

4779-3500

info.ba.general@dfat.gov.au

www.argentina.embassy.gov.au

Monday to Thursday from 9 am to 1 pm and 4 to 5.30 pm. Friday from 9 am to 1 pm and 2 pm to 4.30 pm.

Bolivia

Av. Corrientes 545, 2º piso

City of Buenos Aires

4394-1463

www.embajadadebolivia.com.ar

Monday to Friday from 9.30 am to 5.30 pm.

Brazil

Carlos Pellegrini 1363, 5º piso

City of Buenos Aires

4515-6500

diversos@conbrasil.org.ar

www.brasil.org.ar

Canada

Tagle 2828

City of Buenos Aires

4808-1000

bairs-webmail@international.gc.ca

<http://geo.international.gc.ca/latin-america/argentina/>

Monday to Thursday from 2 to 4 pm.

Chile

Av. Pte. Roque Sáenz Peña 547 2º piso

City of Buenos Aires

4331-6228 al 30.

info@consuladodechile.org.ar

www.consuladodechile.org.ar

Monday to Friday from 9 am to 1 pm.

China

Av. Crisólogo Larralde 5349

City of Buenos Aires

4547-8100

Colombia

Carlos Pellegrini 1363 3º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4325-0258

turismo@embajadacolombia.int.ar

comercio@embajadacolombia.int.ar cultura@embajadacolombia.int.ar

educacion@embajadacolombia.int.ar www.embajadacolombia.int.ar

Monday to Friday from 9.30 am to 1 pm and 2.30 pm to 5.30 pm.

Costa Rica

Av. Callao 1769 7º b
City of Buenos Aires
4814-1660

embarica@fibertel.com.ar

Cuba

Virrey Del Pino 1810
City of Buenos Aires
4782-9049/ 89

info@ar.embacuba.cu

www.embacuba.com.ar

Dominican Republic

Av. Santa Fe 830 7º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4312-9378

Ecuador

Av. Quintana 585 9º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4804-0073

El Salvador

Suipacha 1380 2º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4325-0849 / 8588

elsalvador@fibertel.com.ar

www.embajadaelsalvador.com.ar

France

Av. Santa Fe 846 4º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4312-2409

info@cgf.int.ar

www.consulatfrance.int.ar

Monday to Friday from 9 am to 12.30 pm and 2 to 4 pm.

Guatemala

Av. Santa Fe 830 5º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4313-9160 / 9180

embagua@peoples.com.ar

Great Britain

Dr. Luis Agote 2412
City of Buenos Aires
4808-2200
www.britain.org.ar/index_sp.html
Monday to Friday from 9 am to 2 pm.

Germany

Villanueva 1055
City of Buenos Aires
4778-2500
info@buenos-aires.diplo.de
www.buenos-aires.diplo.de
Monday to Friday from 8.30 to 11 am.

Haiti

Av. Pte. Figueroa Alcorta 3297
City of Buenos Aires
4807-0211
embajadahaiti@fibertel.com.ar

Honduras

Av. Callao 1564 2º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4803-0077 / 1769
embajadahonduras@fibertel.com.ar

Israel

Av. de Mayo 701 10º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4338-2500

Italy

Billinghurst 2577
City of Buenos Aires
4011-2100
ambasciata.buenosaires@esteri.it
www.ambbuenosaires.esteri.it

Mexico

Arcos 1650
City of Buenos Aires
4118-8800
www.embamex.int.ar

Netherlands

Olgaa Cosentini 831 3º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4338-0050

Argentina.ar

bue-tcz@minbuza.ml
www.embajadaholanda.int.ar

Palestina

Riobamba 981
City of Buenos Aires
4816-6651
embajada@palestina.int.ar
www.palestina.int.ar

Panama

Av. Santa Fe 1461 1º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4811-1254
www.embajadadepanama.com.ar

Paraguay

Av. Gral. Las Heras 2545
City of Buenos Aires
4802-3826 / 3432

Peru

Av. del Libertador 1720
City of Buenos Aires
4802-2000
contacto@embajadadelperu.com.ar
www.embajadadelperu.com.ar
Monday to Friday from 9 am to 1 pm and 3 to 6 pm.

Portugal

Maipú 942 17º piso
City of Buenos Aires
4312-3524 / 0187
www.embaixadaportugal.com.ar

Russia

Rodriguez Peña 1741
City of Buenos Aires
4813-1552 / 8039
embrusia@fibertel.com.ar
www.argentina.mid.ru

Saudi Arabia

Alejandro María de Aguado 2881
City of Buenos Aires
0800-3456-999. Monday to Friday from 9 am to 12 am. Saturday and Sunday from 9 am to 7 pm.
www.embajadasaudi.org

South Korea

Av. del Libertador 2395
City of Buenos Aires

4802-9665

www.embcorea.org.ar

Spain

Gral. Guido 1770

City of Buenos Aires

4814-9100

cog.buenosaires@correo.mae.es

www.mae.es/consulados/buenosaires

Monday to Friday from 8.15 am to 2.30 pm.

Syria

Av. Callao 956

City of Buenos Aires

4813-2113 / 5438

Switzerland

Av. Santa Fe 846 12º piso

City of Buenos Aires

4311-6491

United States

Av. Colombia 4300

City of Buenos Aires

5777-4533

BuenosAires-GSO@state.gov

<http://buenosaires.usembassy.gov>

Uruguay

Las Heras 1907

City of Buenos Aires

4807-3040 / 50

urubaires@embajadadeluruguay.com.ar

www.embajadadeluruguay.com.ar

Venezuela

Virrey Loreto 2035

City of Buenos Aires

4785-2226 / 4788-4944

embajada@argentina.gob.ve

www.argentina.gob.ve

Monday to Friday from 9.30 am to 12.30 pm.

To see the full list, go to www.mrecic.gov.ar/portal/guia-dip/rep-ext/rep-ext.html

Universities and institutes

State-run universities

Universidad de Buenos Aires
Viamonte 430/444 y Reconquista 694 (CP 1053) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4510-1100 / 4511-8153
www.uba.ar

Universidad Nacional de Catamarca
Esquiú 612 - (CP 4700) San Fernando del Valle de Catamarca
(03833) 42-4099 / 43-5177 / 45-0217
www.unca.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Chilecito
9 de Julio 22 - (CP 5333) Chilecito. La Rioja
(03825) 42-6291
www.undec.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Córdoba
Haya de la Torre s/n, Pabellón Argentina, Ciudad Universitaria (CP 5000) Córdoba
(0351) 433-4072 / 4157 / 3092 / 3094 / 3093
www.unc.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Cuyo
Centro Universitario Parque Gral. San Martín (CP 5500) Mendoza
(0261) 4494000 al 4020
www.uncu.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Entre Ríos
Eva Perón 24 (CP 3260) Concepción del Uruguay. Entre Ríos
(03442) 421530 / 421500
www.uner.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Formosa
Don Bosco 1082 (CP 3600) Formosa
(03717) 430-485 / 434274 / 423922
www.unf.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de General San Martín
25 de Mayo y Francia (CP 1650) Partido de San Martín. Buenos Aires
(011) 40061500 - 47241500
www.unsam.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de General Sarmiento
Juan M. Gutiérrez 1150 (CP 1613) Los Polvorines. Buenos Aires
(011) 4469-7500 / 4469-7592 / 7598
www.ungs.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Jujuy

Av. Bolivia N 1239 (CP 4600) San Salvador de Jujuy
(0388) 4221-502 / 504
www.unju.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de la Matanza
Florencio Varela 1903 (CP 1754) San Justo. Buenos Aires
(011) 4651-8339 / 44808900
www.unlm.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de la Pampa
Coronel Gil 353 3 Piso (CP 6300) Santa Rosa. La Pampa
(02954) 45-1600 / 45-1604
www.unlpam.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de la Patagonia Austral
Lisandro de la Torre 860 (CP 9400) Río Gallegos. Santa Cruz
(02966) 44-2370 al 2377
www.unpa.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de la Patagonia San Juan Bosco
Ciudad Universitaria Km 4 (CP 9005) Comodoro Rivadavia. Chubut
(0297) 455-7453 / 7687 / 7856 / 7954
www.unp.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de la Plata
Calle 7 N 776 (CP 1900) La Plata. Buenos Aires
(0221) 423-6804 / 427-8002 / 6412
www.unlp.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de la Rioja
Av. Vicente Bustos y Av. Laprida (CP 5300) La Rioja
(03822) 45-7000 al 7004
www.unlar.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Lanús
29 de Septiembre 3901 (CP 1826) Remedios de Escalada. Buenos Aires
(011) 4202-9207
www.unla.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Lomas de Zamora
Camino de Cintura Km. 2 (CP 1836) Lomas de Zamora. Buenos Aires
(011) 42828046 / 4245 / 2311 / 9458 / 8045
www.unlz.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Luján
Ruta Nacionales 5 y Av. Constitución (CP 6700) Luján. Buenos Aires
(02323) 427701/ 420380 / 3979 / 3677 / 2485
www.unlu.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Mar del Plata
Av. Juan Bautista Alberdi 2695 (CP 7600) Mar del Plata. Buenos Aires

(0223) 492-1705 / 1700

www.mdp.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Misiones

Campus Universitario - Ruta Nacional 12, Km. 7 ½ (CP 3304) Posadas. Misiones

(03752) 48-0916 / 0691 / 0200

www.unam.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Quilmes

Roque Sáenz Peña 180 (CP 1876) Bernal. Buenos Aires

(011) 4365-7124

www.unq.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Río Cuarto

Ruta Nacional 36 Km. 601 (CP 5800) Río Cuarto. Córdoba

(0358) 467-6300 / 6200

www.unrc.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Rosario

Córdoba 1814 (CP 2000) Rosario. Santa Fe

(0341) 480-2626 / 20/22/25/28/29

www.unr.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Salta

Buenos Aires 177 (CP 4400) Salta

(0387) 432-0563 / 5701 / 5703 / 5702 / 5704

www.unsa.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de San Juan

Av. Ignacio de la Roza 391 (CP 5400) San Juan

(0264) 4214510 / 4513 / 4582

www.unsj.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de San Luis

Ejercito de los Andes 950 1º piso (CP 5700) San Luis

(02652) 423489 / 425328 / 420822 / 424668

www.unsl.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Santiago del Estero

Av. Belgrano (S) 1912 (CP 4200) Santiago del Estero

(0385) 4509510 / 9508 / 9516 / 9501/ 9500

www.unse.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Tres de Febrero

Av. San Martín 2921 (CP 1678) Caseros. Buenos Aires

(011) 4734-5849 / 4759-9810 / 9686 / 6680

www.untref.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Tucumán

Ayacucho 491 (CP 4000) San Miguel de Tucumán

(0381) 424-7762 / 7752

www.unt.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional de Villa María

Lisandro de la Torre 252 (CP 5900) Villa María. Córdoba
(0353) 453-9100 / 9101 / 9107

www.unvm.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional del Centro de la Provincia de Buenos Aires

Gral. Pinto N° 399 (CP 7000) Tandil. Buenos Aires
(02293) 42-1876 / 1837

www.unicen.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional del Comahue

Buenos Aires 1400 (CP 8300) Neuquén
(0299) 449-0363 / 0300

www.uncoma.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional del Litoral

Boulevard Pellegrini 2750 (CP 3000) Santa Fe
(0342) 457-1125 / 1110

www.unl.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional del Nordeste

25 de Mayo 868 (CP 3400) Corrientes
(03783) 42-5064 / 4678

www.unne.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional del Noroeste de la Provincia de Buenos Aires

Roque Sáenz Peña 456 (CP 6000) Junín. Buenos Aires
(02362) 44-5479 / 4213 / 5479

www.unnoba.edu.ar

Universidad Nacional del Sur

Av. Colón 80 (CP 8000) Bahía Blanca. Buenos Aires
(0291) 459-5015 / 5017 / 5027 / 5000/1

www.uns.edu.ar

Universidad Tecnológica Nacional

Sarmiento 440 - piso 3º, 5º, 6º, 7º, 8º (CP 1347) Ciudad de Buenos Aires
(011) 5371-5700 / 5600 / 5702 / 5704 / 5703

www.utn.edu.ar

Private universities

Pontificia Universidad Católica Argentina

Av. Alicia Moreau de Justo 1300 "Edificio Santa María de los Buenos Aires" (CP 1107) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4349-0251 / 0200 / 4338-0600

www.uca.edu.ar

Universidad Abierta Interamericana

Chacabuco 90 1º piso (CP 1069) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4342-7788
www.vaneduc.edu.ar

Universidad Adventista del Plata

25 de Mayo 99 (CP 3103) Villa Libertador General San Martín. Entre Ríos
(0343) 491-8000
www.uapar.edu

Universidad Argentina de la Empresa

Lima 717, Lima I, P.B. (CP 1073) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4000-7316/7317/7479
www.uade.edu.ar

Universidad Argentina John F. Kennedy

Bartolomé Mitre 1411 1º Piso (CP 1037) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4371-6043 / 4372-2271
www.kennedy.edu.ar

Universidad Atlántida Argentina

Diagonal Rivadavia 515 (CP 7109) Mar de Ajó. Buenos Aires
(02257) 42-0338 / 42-9300
www.atlantida.edu.ar

Universidad Austral

Av. Juan de Garay 125 piso 6 (CP 1063) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 5921-8015 / 8014 / 8000
www.austral.edu.ar

Universidad Blas Pascal

Av. Donato Alvarez 380 (CP 5147) Argüello. Córdoba
(0351) 414- 44 44
www.ubp.edu.ar

Universidad CAECE

Junin 516 (CP 1026) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 5252-2800
www.caece.edu.ar

Universidad Católica de Córdoba

Camino a Alta Gracia Km. 10 (CP 5000) Córdoba
(0351) 426-8801/4580
www.uccor.edu.ar

Universidad Católica de Cuyo

Av. José Ignacio de la Roza 1516 (CP 5400) Rivadavia. San Juan
(0264) 429-2300
www.uccuyo.edu.ar

Universidad Católica de La Plata

Calle 13 N 1227 (CP 1900) La Plata. Buenos Aires
(0221) 422-2886 / 422-7100
www.ucalp.edu.ar

Universidad Católica de Salta
Campus Universitario Castañares (CP 4400) Salta
(0387) 426-8801/4580
www.ucasal.net

Universidad Católica de Santa Fe
Echagüe 7151 (CP 3000) Santa Fe
(0342) 460-3030
www.ucsf.edu.ar

Universidad Católica de Santiago del Estero
Av. Alsina y Dalmacio Vélez Sársfield (CP 4200) Santiago del Estero
(0385) 421-1777 / 8935
www.ucse.edu.ar

Universidad Champagnat
Belgrano 721 (CP 5501) Godoy Cruz. Mendoza
(0261) 424-8448 / 8443
www.uch.edu.ar

Universidad de Belgrano
Zabala 1837 piso 2º (CP 1426) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4576-3928 / 3944 / 4788-5400
www.ub.edu.ar

Universidad de Ciencias Empresariales y Sociales
Paraguay 1338 piso 10 (CP 1057) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4815-3290 / 3287 / 91
www.uces.edu.ar

Universidad de Concepción del Uruguay
8 de Junio 522 (CP 3260) Concepción del Uruguay. Entre Ríos
(03442) 425-606 / 427-721
www.ucu.edu.ar

Universidad de Congreso
Av. Colón 90 (CP 5500) Mendoza
(0261) 423-0630 / 425-8601
www.ucongreso.edu.ar

Universidad de Flores
Av. Nazca 274 (CP 1406) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4611-4800
www.uflo.edu.ar

Universidad de la Cuenca del Plata
Lavalle Nº 50 (CP 3400) Corrientes

(03783) 436-360 / 235 / 236

www.ucp.edu.ar

Universidad de la Fraternidad de Agrupaciones Santo Tomás de Aquino

Gascón 3145 (CP 7600) Mar del Plata. Buenos Aires

(0223) 491-6418 / 19 / 493-7425

www.ufasta.edu.ar

Universidad de la Marina Mercante

Av. Rivadavia 2258 (CP 1034) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4953-9000

www.udemm.edu.ar

Universidad de Mendoza

Boulogne Sur Mer 683 (CP 5500) Mendoza

(0261) 420-2017 / 0740

www.um.edu.ar

Universidad de Morón

Cabildo 134 (CP 1708) Morón. Buenos Aires

(011) 4483-1023 / 5627-2000

www.unimoron.edu.ar

Universidad de Palermo

Mario Bravo 1050 piso 8º (CP 1175) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4963-8624 / 4964-4610

www.palermo.edu

Universidad de San Andrés

Vito Dumas 284 (CP 1644) Victoria. San Fernando

(011) 4725-7018 / 7061 / 7009 / 4725-7000

www.udesa.edu.ar

Universidad del Aconcagua

Catamarca 129 (CP 5500) Mendoza

(0261) 520-1629 / 37

www.uda.edu.ar

Universidad del CEMA

Av. Córdoba 374 (CP 1054) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 6314-3000

www.cema.edu.ar

Universidad del Centro Educativo Latinoamericano

Av. Pellegrini 1332 (CP 2000) Rosario. Santa Fe

(0341) 426-1241

www.ucel.edu.ar

Universidad del Cine

Pasaje Giuffra 353 (CP 1064) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4300-1407 / 1581 / 1583 / 1413 / 1407 / 8190

www.ucine.edu.ar

Universidad del Museo Social Argentino

Av. Corrientes 1723 (CP 1042) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4375-4601 / 4602 / 4372-5098 / 99

www.umsa.edu.ar

Universidad del Norte Santo Tomás de Aquino

9 de Julio 165 (CP 4000) San Miguel de Tucumán
(0381) 430-0698 / 421-8659

www.unsta.edu.ar

Universidad del Salvador

Viamonte 1856 (CP 1056) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4813-9630 / 1408

www.salvador.edu.ar

Universidad Empresarial Siglo 21

Rondeau 165 piso 7° (CP 5000) Córdoba
(0351) 414-0371/0316/0350

www.uesiglo21.edu.ar

Universidad Favaloro

Solís 453 piso 6° (CP 1078) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4378-1169 / 69

www.favaloro.edu.ar

Universidad Juan Agustín Maza

Acceso Este Lateral Sur N° 2245 (CP 5519) Guaymallén. Mendoza
(0261) 431-9732

www.umaza.edu.ar

Universidad Maimónides

Talcahuano 469 (CP 1013) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4382-4526 / 7127

www.maimonides.edu.ar

Universidad Notarial Argentina

Avenida 51 N 435 (CP 1900) La Plata. Buenos Aires
(0221) 4219283 / 0552

www.universidadnotarial.edu.ar

Universidad Torcuato Di Tella

Miñones 2159/77 (CP 1428) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4784-0080

www.utdt.edu

National Higher Education Institutes

Instituto de Enseñanza Superior del Ejército

Argentina.ar

Cabildo 65 1º piso (CP 1426) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4576-5648 / 5650
www.iese.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario Aeronáutico
Av. Fuerza Aérea Km. 6,5 (CP 5022) Guarnición Aérea. Córdoba
(0351) 568-8802 / 03 / 04
www.iaa.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario de la Policía Federal Argentina
Rosario 532 2 piso (CP 1424) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4902-4201 / 4901-9783
www.universidad-policial.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario de Seguridad Marítima
Av. Eduardo Madero 345 (CP 1043) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4576-7655/7511/7513
www.prefecturanaval.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario Nacional del Arte
Paraguay 786 (CP 1057) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4516-0992 / 93 / 94
www.iuna.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario Naval
Av. Comodoro Rivadavia 1273 (CP 1497) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4704-8261 / 8237
www.inun.edu.ar

Escuela Nacional de Experimentación y Realización Cinematográfica
Moreno 1199 (CP 1091) Ciudad de Buenos Aires
(011) 4383-2622 / 4383-6432
www.enerc.gov.ar

Private Institutes

Escuela de Medicina del Hospital Italiano
Potosí 4240 (CP 1119) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4983-2624
www.hospitalitaliano.org.ar

Escuela Universitaria de Teología
Pasaje Catedral 1750 1 Piso (CP 7600) Mar del Plata. Buenos Aires
(0223) 493-1101
www.iglesiamdp.org.ar

Instituto Tecnológico de Buenos Aires
Av. Eduardo Madero 399 (CP 1106) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4314-0270 / 7778
www.itba.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario "Escuela Superior de Economía y Administración

Uriarte 2472 (CP 1425) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4773-3735 / 5825 / 4772-7243

www.eseade.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario. IDEA

Moreno 1850 5º piso (CP 1094) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 5861-4340

www.ideared.org

Instituto Universitario ISEDET

Camacua 252 (CP 1406) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4632-5030 / 5039

www.isedet.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario CEMIC

Av. Galván 4102 (CP 1431) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4546-8290 / 8200

www.cemic.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario de Ciencias de la Salud Fundación H.A. Barceló

Av. Las Heras 2191 (CP 1127) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4805-2607

www.barcelo.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario de la Fundación. ISALUD

Venezuela 925/31 (CP 1095) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 5239-4000

www.isalud.org

Instituto Universitario de Salud Mental de la Asociación Psicoanalítica

Maure 1850 (CP 1426) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 4775-7867/7985/4779-0512

www.apdeba.org

Instituto Universitario del Gran Rosario

Corrientes 1254 (CP 2000) Rosario. Santa Fe

(0341) 411-0506/445-1035

Instituto Universitario Escuela Argentina de Negocios

Esmeralda 321 (CP 1035) City of Buenos Aires

(011) 5032-3991/3990

www.ean.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario Gastón Dachary

Salta y Colón. Piso 2 (CP 3300) Posadas. Misiones

(03752) 43-8677

www.dachary.edu.ar

Instituto Universitario Italiano de Rosario

Virasoro 1249 (CP 2000) Rosario. Santa Fe
(0341)485-8893
www.iunir.edu.ar

Other universities

Universidad Autónoma de Entre Ríos

Av. Ramírez 1143 (CP 3100) Paraná. Entre Ríos
(0343)4207908/7891/7907
www.uader.edu.ar

Universidad de Bologna

Rodríguez Peña 1464 (CP 1021) City of Buenos Aires
(011)4878-2900
www.unibo.edu.ar

Facultad Latinoamericana de Ciencias Sociales (FLACSO)

Ayacucho 551 (CP 1026) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4375-2435
www.flacso.org.ar

Official Entities

Ministry of External Relations, International Commerce and Worship

Esmeralda 1212 (C1007ABR) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4819-7000
www.mrecic.gov.ar

National Immigrations Department

Av. Antártida Argentina 1355 City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4317-0234 al 38. Monday to Friday from 8 am to 7.30 pm.
www.migraciones.gov.ar

National Education Ministry

Pizzurno 935 (C1020ACA) City of Buenos Aires
(011) 4129-1000
www.me.gov.ar

5. Electronic directory

Argentina. Official website of Argentina Brand
www.argentina.ar

Argentina. Government Official site
www.argentina.gov.ar

Argentina's Presidency
www.presidencia.gov.ar

Agenda. Argentina
www.argentina.ar/agenda.php

Atomic Energy National Commission (CNEA)
www.cnea.gov.ar

Certificate of Spanish, Language and Use
www.celu.edu.ar

Department for Science, Technology and Productive Innovation
www.mincyt.gov.ar

Educar
www.educ.ar/educar/index.html

Innovation
www.innovar.gov.ar

Industrial Technology National Institute
www.inti.gov.ar

Ministry of Education
www.me.gov.ar

Ministry of External Relations, International Commerce and Worship
www.mrecic.gov.ar

National Agency for Science and Technology Promotion
www.agencia.gov.ar

National Council of Scientific and Technical Research (CONICET)
www.conicet.gov.ar

National Migrations Department
www.migraciones.gov.ar

National Library
www.bn.gov.ar

Argentina.ar



Nanotechnology Argentine Foundation
www.fan.org.ar

Secretariat of Culture
www.cultura.gov.ar

Secretaría de University Polices
www.me.gov.ar/spu/index.html

Space Activities National Commission
www.conae.gov.ar

Study in Argentina
spuweb.siu.edu.ar/studyinargentina/StudyinArgentina.htm

6. Sources

Argentine University Promotional Programme. Secretariat of University Policies. Ministry of Education
(011) 4129 - 1970 / 1971
promouniv@me.gov.ar

Argentina. Official Website of Argentina Brand
www.argentina.ar

Argentina. Government Official site
www.argentina.gov.ar

Ministry of External Relations, International Commerce and Worship
www.mrecic.gov.ar

National Immigrations Department
www.migraciones.gov.ar

Study in Argentina
<http://spuweb.siu.edu.ar/studyinargentina/StudyinArgentina.htm>

Ministry of Education
www.me.gov.ar

Secretariat of University Polices
www.me.gov.ar/spu/index.html

Material devised by www.argentina.ar jointly with the
National Education Department Program for the Promotion of the Argentine University abroad.